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DAY 1 – 20 July 2016 
 

  [10.03 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  Is there any Counsel present that are not seated at the 5 

front tables, if they would come forward please.  Just take a seat by one 

of the microphones, Mr Wilding. 

 

MR WILDING:   Sir, I am not Counsel. 

 10 

SJH:   You are appearing on your own behalf are you? 

 

MR WILDING:   Yes, I am, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, well we will leave you in the back for the moment. 15 

 

MR  WILDING:   Thank you, sir. 

 

MR COOPER:   I am here with my client Mr McCormack, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   Yes, I understand.  Do not worry the tie, we are not quite that formal. 

 

MR COOPER:   Okay, that’s good, thank you very much. 

 

SJH:   Look, just before I start, I will look to outline the purpose of this 25 

Hearing today.   

 

 The Panel had some concerns as we have identified already that a 

mediated agreement meant that a number of trees went back into the 

Significant Tree list with property owners and occupiers perhaps not 30 

being aware of it. 

 

 Now this is not a notification, it is the Panel through the Chair 

exercising our obligations under their Order in Council to ensure 

fairness of hearing, so that is why this matter has advanced in the way 35 

it has. 

 

  [10.05 am] 

 

 The purpose of today is to give you an opportunity to indicate various 40 

procedural matters leading to a Hearing, so you will have the 

opportunity to speak to the full Panel about your particular concerns.  

You will have the right if you wish to do so to call evidence and I will 

come to that and explain it a little more fully when we have moved 

through this process, and you will also have the opportunity if you 45 

wish, to call expert evidence. 
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 So have we recorded all the lay submitters at the moment or not? 

 

 All right, could I just ask you if you have anything to say, we will bring 

you a microphone just for the record as it is all going down a telephone 5 

line and being transcribed, if you just identify your name, just say your 

name before you speak, otherwise we will have a very difficult job later 

working out who is who. 

 

 Mr Conway, you are for the Council? 10 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, I am, sir. 

 

SJH:   And Mr van der Wal, you are from the Civic Trust? 

 15 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes, sir, and I also act in relation to the Stanmore elm 

for a Mr Errol Hadfield, William Lindsay Carswell and Ms Helen 

Lowe. 

 

SJH:   Right, and Ms Davidson, you are now appearing for Foodstuffs? 20 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, and I am sorry, I did not take your name before. 

 25 

MR COOPER:   Chris Cooper, yes. 

 

SJH:   For Mr McCormack? 

 

MR COOPER:   Yes indeed, thank you very much. 30 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Davidson, I am just slightly confused because 

Foodstuffs submitted on this, they had an opportunity to participate in 

the Hearing, we had an indication from Mr Christensen I think that they 

did not wish to adduce evidence.  This is not an opportunity for a 35 

second bite of the cherry, this is an opportunity for people who have 

not had a bite of the cherry at all to date, so what is your position in 

relation to that, why didn’t you call evidence or appear earlier? 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Sir, I understand that Foodstuff’s position remains the same 40 

as set out in the submission, so they remain opposed to the inclusion.  I 

think I am instructed to appear here - - - 

 

SJH:   But you did not appear in the original Hearing? 

 45 

MS DAVIDSON:   No, sir, I did not. 
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SJH:   And you were a submitted, so you had the opportunity to do so.  I am 

just a little bit lost so help me. 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Sir, my instructions are that I am to appear today - - - 5 

 

SJH:   I am not concerned with your instructions, I am concerned with the 

position with are in where this is a Hearing for people who had missed 

an opportunity, you did not miss an opportunity, so are you seeking to 

adduce additional evidence or what? 10 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   No, sir, to my knowledge, I have no instructions on the 

issue of evidence. 

 

SJH:   Well, has any thought been given to the fact that you were a submitter 15 

and you have had your opportunity? 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Sir, Foodstuffs simply wishes to have their opposition 

noted to the conclusion. 

 20 

SJH:   Well, you have done that already. 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   So this is just doubling up to make sure you are not forgotten? 25 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Mr Conway and Mr van der Wal, just to make sure I have the 

sequence right.  Following mediation the calibration of the CTM 30 

system was adjusted and further assessments with those adjustments 

and parameters was carried out, and that led to a large number of trees 

coming back into the significant list. 

 

 Is that a fair summary of what occurred? 35 

 

MR CONWAY:   Sir, it is correct except that in large part, no further 

assessments were carried out at that point, rather the trees that were 

added back on to the list were primarily added on the basis of the 

assessments that were carried out about two years ago prior to this 40 

process. 

 

SJH:   But under CTM or the old system? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Under CTM. 45 
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SJH:   Under the new system, but for them to come back in, there must have 

been some change of calibration mustn’t there, because they had 

originally been left out? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, the different was essentially, the threshold for which 5 

protection was set so in essence, it was lowered so that more trees were 

captured. 

 

SJH:   I understand that.   So, that means it is in effect a new assessment? 

 10 

MR CONWAY:   In terms of the - - - 

 

SJH:   If it was relooked at – it was relooked at with different parameters? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes. 15 

 

SJH:   I think in lay language anyway, it is a reassessment isn’t it? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Certainly against the criteria, yes. 

 20 

  [10.10 am] 

 

SJH:   Without a physical assessment I accept that, it was a desktop, if I can put 

it, that word that seems to find favour in this particular jurisdiction.  

Would that be a fair way of putting it? 25 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, but in reliance on the earlier physical assessment. 

 

SJH:   Understood.  So given that it is effectively a reassessment with different 

parameters, were those new assessments sent to the affected 30 

landholders? 

 

MR CONWAY:   No, they were not, sir. 

 

SJH:   So that is like there is no obligation to serve that we read in the paper the 35 

other day as well is it, Mr Conway?  You are restricting peoples’ rights, 

but you did not feel you had any obligation to notify people.   

 

MR CONWAY:   That step was not taken, sir, we carried on as part of this 

particular process in terms of those who had lodged submissions. 40 

 

SJH:   Well hindsight is very smart and we all know that but didn’t it ring 

somebody’s bells that these peoples’ rights were being restricted and 

they ought to know why? 

 45 
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MR CONWAY:   Sir, my understanding is that we are now in the process 

whereby parties can or people can have a say - - - 

 

SJH:   Mr Conway, we have been through this, you and I before, it is much 

better to answer my questions, not something else. 5 

 

MR CONWAY:   Sir, in the context of that mediation agreement, it was not 

considered that there was to be any letter that went out to parties - - - 

 

SJH:   So it is the City Council’s position that despite a reassessment that 10 

restricted peoples’ rights, rightly or wrongly, because that is what the 

Hearing is for, to find that out, you did not have to tell them that that 

had changed and the reasons for the change? 

 

MR CONWAY:   In a formal sense, no sir. 15 

 

SJH:   Well in any sense?  I mean, it just seems a strange position to take, 

particularly for lawyers not to understand when you restrict peoples’ 

rights, people are entitled to know why. 

 20 

MR CONWAY:   Sir, by analogy to other changes that get made through 

mediation, those changes can adjust the way that a plan provision 

affects a range of people who are not part of the - - - 

 

SJH:   I accept that but didn’t they all get letters similar to the one here which 25 

would put people of their guard, it cannot be read any other way, 

bluntly. 

  

 And I am not suggesting that it is the Trust’s obligation, they got what 

they were after, more trees included, but surely ratepayers have got a 30 

right, haven’t they.  Is the answer we just do not know why that did not 

happen given what was going on at the time? 

 

MR CONWAY:   I do not know anything further I can say about that at this 

stage, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   All right.  So you will file a memorandum, is there anything particular 

you want to take me to in that? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir, there are three matters I just want to raise briefly.  40 

The first is that I have since realised that in paragraph 3 the number 294 

in relation to the total number of trees is incorrect. 

 

 That shows the number of total line entries in appendix B, but because 

some of those comments received from landowners relate to the same 45 

trees from different people, the number should be 277. 
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SJH:   So what should that figure be?  

 

MR CONWAY:   So paragraph 3 should say, “103 comments were received 

relating to 277 trees” 5 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MR CONWAY:   And the same correction needs to be made to the start of 

attachment B itself, because it is repeated there. 10 

 

 And then there is also a correction in lines 92 and 289 of appendix B.  

Those relate to a group - - - 

 

SJH:   Sorry, 92? 15 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, and 92 is on page 15. 

 

SJH:   Yes, I have that. 

 20 

MR CONWAY:   That refers to TG19 which is a group of tulip trees, there are 

two trees there, so the second one is also a tulip tree but it is tree 

specimen 3628. 

 

 And the same correction needs to be made at line 289. 25 

 

SJH:   Sorry, the tree number of the second tree? 

 

  [10.15 am] 

 30 

MR CONWAY:   3628, just one additional.  And the final matter is I have 

raised a question in the memo about the scope of the Hearing and it 

relates to the question, there is an additional point there that relates to 

the point you raised with Ms Davidson this morning, which is what of 

the comments that relate to trees that did not get added in through the 35 

mediation agreement? 

 

 Now when we look at attachment B, page 7 of the memo which is the 

cover page of that attachment, as the colour coding for that table, and 

1.5 of that cover note confirms that the trees in the green text in the 40 

table, are trees which are either not subject to the mediation agreement 

or they have already been the subject of a submission. 

 

 And when looking through the table, you can see that in some cases 

there are, for example, T49, is a tree that - - -  45 
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SJH:   Is that saying they are not listed? 

 

MR CONWAY:   If it has got a T number it is listed, if it does not have a T 

number then it is not one that is proposed for listing.  So if we look at 

page 8, for example - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR CONWAY:   - - - the rhododendron there in line 4, is not a tree that is 

currently proposed by the Council for scheduling, but it is one that the 10 

Girl Guides’ comments recently received to say that they would 

support the listing of.  

 

 And then in relation, two lines down, we have got T49 and there are 

other examples of that where the tree was in the notified proposal and 15 

as part of the directions I am seeking from you to help us to confirm the 

scope of this Hearing, Sir, it would be helpful if we could have an 

indication of whether trees that were in the notified proposal are to be 

the subject of this Hearing. 

 20 

SJH:   I must confess, I am not totally following you.  Can we just go back to 

your page, your cover page - - - 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes. 

 25 

SJH:   Red are trees where you say a landowner has been mistaken? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir, one or two examples where the landowner 

comments has referred to the type of tree, but in fact the tree numbers 

they have referred to does not relate to that species of tree, so that is a 30 

minor point. 

 

SJH:   The blue text is multiple comments or comments by multiple people. 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, and there are some additional, I think when I look 35 

through, there may be a couple more double-ups that are not shown in 

blue but they are all in the table. 

 

SJH:    And the green text? 

 40 

MR CONWAY:   The green text are trees where in essence, my request for a 

direction. 

 

SJH:   Are they matters that were already listed among the 400? 

 45 
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MR CONWAY:   Yes, so where there is a tree listed in green, see say for 

example T49, that was a tree that was in the notified proposal which 

parties would have had their opportunity to submit either in support of 

or in opposition to, but tree 49, there is probably no issue there because 

the Girl Guides have noted they support the listing - - - 5 

 

SJH:   I understand that. 

 

MR CONWAY:   - - - there are others where, for example, T50 and 51 - - - 

 10 

SJH:   But you are saying T49 was already notified as part of the 400 

significant trees? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes. 

 15 

SJH:   So the black ones are the ones that came in through mediation? 

 

MR CONWAY:   In essence, yes, plus the red and the blue ones as well.  

 

SJH:   Right. 20 

 

MR CONWAY:   Where there is a tree that is shown in green but there is no T 

number beside it - - - 

 

SJH:   There just does not seem to be an awful lot of green, I mean there is 25 

quite a lot on the first two pages but then there does not seem to be 

much at all.  I am just wondering if the pragmatic response if people 

have submitted on that, we hear them but if it was a notified tree they 

would have to satisfy us why we should consider that now when they 

had the opportunity previously, the way Foodstuffs did. 30 

 

MR CONWAY:   I am content with that, sir, I thought it was probably worth 

just bringing attention to that. 

 

SJH:   It is. 35 

 

MR CONWAY:   But yes, in terms of the trees where there is no T number 

there, they are not in the proposed, or it may not be necessary for those 

- - - 

 40 

SJH:   So without a T number, they are not in the notified proposal, they are 

not in the mediated proposal, the trees are not on a significant list? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Correct, sir, and so - - - 

 45 
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SJH:   So there would only be people who wanted them added to a significant 

list who should appear and have something to say? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Are there many in that category? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Not many I do not think, sir, I have not got a number of that, 

but the ones that you see on page 8 are probably the main ones that you 

might have to go through and check. 10 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

SJH:   All right, we will come to this when I turn to the submitters.  Anything 

else Mr Conway? 15 

 

MR CONWAY:   No, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   You will have seen the suggested timetable, are you content with that? 

 20 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir, and we have reflected that, we have just noted on 

page 4 of the memo there for ease of reference, and no issue with that 

from our perspective, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Mr van der Wal. 25 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   That you, your Honour.  Just in terms of the issue of 

the further notice given.  Your Honour, I just would like to clarify that 

the Trust is also very much cognisance of parties, individual property 

rights and wishes to respect those and so in terms of that, its position 30 

was not trying to get as many trees as possible on it, but however, those 

matters have been addressed in the closing submissions, and I do not 

think assists to take matters further. 

 

 The only matter I do wish to just raise is in relation to issue two and in 35 

relation to all other matters that the Trust concurs with the 

memorandum filed by the Council. 

 

SJH:   What part of your memorandum are you referring to? 

 40 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, I am referring to my friend for the Council’s 

memorandum, and issue two and it is just a point of clarification in 

relation to that, sir. 

 

 It is not clear to the Trust whether that question is based on should the 45 

provisions for pruning of significant trees be more enabling than what 
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is the very latest version before the Panel, or whether the submitters are 

actually referring to what they have to go through currently under the 

Operative Plan, because the point is that obviously those provisions 

have been made significantly more enabling to the version which is 

now before the Panel, and I - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Where are you referring to in that memo? 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   I beg your pardon, sir? 

 10 

SJH:   What page of that memo are you referring to? 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   I am referring to page 3 of my friend’s - - - 

 

SJH:   I see, thank you. 15 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:  Issue 2, yes, sir.  And it would just be helpful if 

submitters could clarify what their position is on that, sir. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 20 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   And then finally, sir, just in terms of the Hearing date, 

I have received further instructions in that Mr Canwallader, he is in a 

dispute Tribunal Hearing on the 10th in Nelson, so it is likely that he 

could be available on the 11th, Ms Lowe is out of town on a prior 25 

commitment involving her writing career, and would have some 

difficulty in attending but she may be able to attend. 

 

SJH:   Well, if she can organise to have a video link, we have done it before so 

we will do it again, and if that assists Mr Canwallader we could do the 30 

same. 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Thank you, sir, that would be helpful and then the 

other issue is just – I might add that when we see the written briefs we 

might decide simply that the - - - 35 

 

SJH:   I appreciate things will change once we starting getting that. 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes, sir.  I have nothing further to add, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Ms Davidson, have you got anything to add to our 

further, our earlier interchange? 

 

MS DAVIDSON:   No sir, again my instructions are that Foodstuffs wishes to 

have their opposition noted to the inclusion and does wish to be heard 45 

if there is to be a future mediation or Hearing on this issue. 
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SJH:   Right, thank you.  And Mr Cooper, have you got anything to add to the 

memoranda that have been filed? 

 

MR COOPER:   No, I have not, your Honour, no, I am really here to observe 5 

and just get a feel for what is coming, thank you very much.  

 

SJH:   All right thank you.  We will come now to the submitters, and the first 

thing I need to explain is that you will have the opportunity at the 

Hearing to either submit which is to speak to the written submission 10 

which you may supplement, you may call evidence which is giving 

evidence on oath and that will mean that other parties may apply to 

cross-examine you, and you will also have the right to call expert 

evidence, I imagine in this particular frame that would only be an 

arborist, but you are entitled to call an expert witness or any other lay 15 

witness that you think would promote your cause. 

 

  [10.25 am] 

 

 Just the two matters that I will stress that Counsel have raised with me.  20 

The first one is that if there is no T number anywhere in the list, that 

means the tree is not in the list, so if you are someone who has a tree 

without a T number and you do not want it in the list, you have already 

achieved that aim, so you do not need to participate in the Hearing. 

 25 

 If however, you wish to be added in as having a significant tree on your 

property, you are perfectly entitled again to either submit, call lay 

evidence or call expert evidence as to why that should be. 

 

 What I suggest would be useful, if you were available, Mr Conway, is 30 

if submitters could approach you at the end and just go through the list 

and clarify those with you? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, absolutely, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   So we can sort that out.  The other one is as Mr van der Wal raised, is 

the requirements around pruning of significant trees.  In the course of 

the Hearing, in the notified version and in the course of the Hearing, 

the position changed somewhat so it is not – I think it would be fair to 

say, Mr van der Wal and correct me if I am wrong – it is not as 40 

restricted as the Operative Plan at the moment.  It is more enabling, not 

to say it is totally straightforward, but it is a much easier path than it 

has been in the past. 

 

 If you are unaware of that, again, can I suggest you talk to Mr Conway 45 

about it who will be able to give you some more information relating to 
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that, or Mr Ball who is the friend of the submitter who I know a 

number of you have spoken to already. 

 

 So I will go through and see if you have any questions or comments.  If 

there is any queries you have about the difference between evidence 5 

and submission and suchlike, do not hesitate to ask and just remember, 

just give your name first. 

 

 So just starting here at the table. 

 10 

MR McCALL:   My name is Ben McCall, I am here on behalf of Matthew 

McCullum-Clark representing the Ministry of Education.  Due to it 

being school holidays currently, we have not been able to get specific 

instructions from each school, it will be their intention to make 

individual submissions at the Hearing as well as the Ministry of 15 

Education.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS DOLAN:   I am Nicola Dolan on behalf of Merivale Mall and TEL 20 

Property Nominees.  My question is, if we are providing photographs 

or imageries of the area in support of our submission, is that considered 

evidence and do we need to present that earlier? 

 

SJH:   Yes, you should file – if you have got photographic evidence to support 25 

your position, I will make some timetable orders in due course after I 

have heard from you all, but you should file those photographs at the 

same time, and when they come in, we will give those an exhibit 

number and they will become part of the evidence in front of us. 

 30 

MS DOLAN:   Great, thank you. 

 

MR WILDING:   Thank you Sir, Wilding for Westall Trust.  Sir, I just wish to 

address the issues that have been set out by Mr Conway, and he has 

raised two.  The first whether the specific trees should be listed and 35 

second the restrictions of the regime, and I just submit there should be a 

third which is to what extent the provisions of 9.4 ought to be rewritten 

to reflect the concerns raised. 

 

 And as an example, sir, the provisions do not appear to recognise that 40 

there can be an adverse amenity affect because of trees, they do not 

incorporate decisions such as Auckland City Council v John Woolley 

Trust in which Randerson J, made clear that the Act in considering 

such trees ought to take into account individual amenity and economic 

and other hardship. 45 
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 So my submission, sir, is that that is an issue that ought to be able to be 

addressed by submitters in this context. 

 

SJH:   It certainly should and Mr Conway, you can add that to the list of issues, 

but you at least, with your background Mr Wilding, will be able to 5 

assist us by providing us with some suggested drafting. 

 

MR WILDING:   It is not quite my area, but I am certainly happy - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I am sure you have got connections that can help you with that - - 10 

- 

 

MR WILDING:   I will do my best - - - 

 

SJH:   - - - because it is far better to work off something concrete than just 15 

leave it to others. 

 

MR WILDING:   Certainly, sir. 

 

  [10.30 am] 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR BENNETT:   Keri Bennett, Tree T 858.  Initially, after the earthquakes, I 

am waiting to get my driveway fixed because an oak cracked the 25 

driveway but it is on my neighbour’s – well, I thought it was my 

neighbour’s tree because it is on the other side of my boundary, but 

since talking to the Council, I found it is actually my tree, the boundary 

is wrong. 

 30 

 But I cannot get the driveway fixed until the tree is sorted out.  I am not 

a tree hater - it is hanging over, it is rotten wood, a decent wind and it 

will damage my roof but mainly I would like to get repairs done and I 

am not getting any joy from the Council at all and no-one will even 

come and look. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, that is a matter we will have to hear from you and make a 

decision, but again, it may be useful if you have a discussion with 

Mr Conway and again, it would be a case where photographs would be 

helpful to the Panel, okay.  40 

 

MS MULCOCK:   Claire Mulcock, submitter number 32.  I am just wondering, 

there is changing criteria that came out of the mediation, is there a 

report available on that mediation, I have been unable to find anything 

except something in some rebuttal evidence. 45 
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SJH:   It should be posted online on the secretariat’s website. 

 

MS MULCOCK:   I am just wondering if maybe I can get some guidance on 

where - -  

 5 

SJH:   If you speak to the secretariat before you go, that can be made available. 

 

MS MULCOCK:   Because other people might be interested too. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 10 

 

MS DRAYTON:   My name is Catherine Drayton, I just wanted to talk about a 

tree on Park Terrace.   

 

 I understand when this goes to Hearing we can make some submissions 15 

about the physical condition of the tree, I am more interested in the 

criteria and how the criteria have changed. 

 

 So are we able to make submissions on what those criteria should be or 

is that something that now is fixed through this mediation? 20 

 

SJH:   No, the decision has not been made yet, and it is for the Panel in its 

decision, to set what those criteria should be, so I think you are really 

going to have to look at the transcript from that earlier tree Hearing 

where there was a number of arborists that supported the existing 25 

system, there was others that supported the new CTEM system.  The 

result of the mediation was that the Civic Trust and the Council reached 

agreement that the appropriate system was the CTEM one but with 

changed parameters. 

 30 

 Now that will be presumably in the mediation report, Mr van der Wal, 

is it? 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes sir, and it is also, from memory with 

documentation filed with the Panel in terms of reports of the mediation. 35 

 

SJH:   Yes, well that would be online as well I would think.  So you can submit 

on that. 

 

MS DRAYTON:   So is it just the report that is online or is the full transcript 40 

online? 

 

SJH:   The full transcript is online. 

 

MS DRAYTON:   Lovely, thank you. 45 
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MR CONWAY:   Sir, in case it assists, Mr Rob Graham’s rebuttal evidence set 

out the revised parameters that the trees were assessed against and - - - 

 

SJH:   You are quite right, assuming you accept the CTEM method, which not 

everybody did, others gave evidence and submitted that we should 5 

follow the existing system.  If you go to the rebuttal evidence of 

Mr Rob Graham on behalf of the Council, you will see there where 

they arrived at following mediation.  And if you want to submit 

contrary to that, you are at liberty to do so.  If you want to call evidence 

contrary to that, you are at liberty to do so. 10 

 

MR McDONALD:   Good morning, sir, Graeme McDonald, I am a submitter, I 

had a late email last night – apparently my email address had been 

transposed and I am just receiving this correspondence late – but I did 

note that the Council were calling some arborists and a valuer, and I 15 

was interested in the nature of their submission. 

 

 I presume it is of a general nature and not specific to each tree on each 

property. 

 20 

SJH:   Maybe if you contact Mr Conway and ask him that question and he will 

tell us after I have been through the rest of the submitters.  

 

MR McDONALD:   Right, because I was interested in the right of reply if it is 

specific to each tree.  Thank you. 25 

 

  [10.35 am] 

 

MR McCORMACK:   Robert McCormack, I am a part owner of a property at 1 

Wood Lane in Fendalton.  There are four trees on our property, one has 30 

been notified as significant, a copper beech tree in the middle of the 

property, more recently we have been advised that there are three tulip 

trees that have now been notified as significant trees. 

 

 We have auctioned our property, it has been in a one ownership 35 

virtually for 60 years, one family, the property was auctioned, it has 

been auctioned three times which is incredibly unusual.  We have two 

valuations, or many valuations, but one that I have, without the tree in 

the middle it is valued at 2,750, with the tree, is it valued at 1,750.  

Sections are selling in the Fendalton area - one 1,250 square metre, 40 

currently there is an offer at the moment which represents $621 a 

square metre, adding another three trees to property it has virtually 

devalued the land, and has to be built – I think the setback from the 

river either 10 or 15 metres from the boundary, so the value of the 

property that has been in the same ownership, same family 60 years, is 45 

adversely affected by the significant trees.  
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 I have made personal submissions, I have offered the Council money to 

give the money in lieu of to plant trees on the same site or in reserves, 

and this has not been accepted. 

 5 

SJH:   Well that is very much going to the merits of the situation, so you will 

need to call evidence and give the whole Panel that evidence and we 

will have to make a decision - - - 

 

MR McCORMACK:   Correct. 10 

 

SJH:   - - - if you cannot reach agreement with the Council. 

 

MR McCORMACK:   Correct, thank you.  

 15 

SJH:   Mr Conway, can you just answer the question from the back there. 

 

MR CONWAY:   Sir, the intent is that the evidence from our valuer will 

respond to particular landowners who have raised valuation matters in 

their comments. 20 

 

SJH:   Does that answer the question, Mr McDonald? 

 

MR McDONALD:   Assuming I have the right of reply if my name is on that 

list, yes, (INDISTINCT 2.10) that evidence. 25 

 

SJH:   Yes, yes, I will come to that in a moment.  Is there anything else any 

submitter wants to raise before I put in place the timetable order, or any 

Counsel.  

 30 

MR PURDUE:   Jarrod Purdue.  I am just wondering if the Panel can just 

maybe, not take some guidance, but I understand that for a lot of the 

owners in our dealings with the Council, our individual properties and 

how we interact with the tree, do not seem to take a lot of weight with 

them, it is more about how – you know, the age, the size, the welfare of 35 

the tree, but not a lot of consideration is taken to how the tree fits in 

with the landowners and I have got small kids, and the Council does 

not really seem to care that, you know, it drops branches continually 

and it is just an absolutely nightmare for the people who live on the site 

and whenever I deal with the Council, it does not seem to take much of 40 

the criteria, they are not too worried about that, they are more worried 

about the condition, how the rest of the community sees the tree, but 

not a lot of consideration to the people who actually live on that site.  
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SJH:   Again, that is very much a matter that goes to the merit, so you will be 

able to give us that evidence and the Panel will take that into account, 

okay. 

 

 All right, thank you, Mr Conway, the memorandum of Statement of 5 

Issues and any definitions by 19 July, there is only one matter, I think, 

to add to the Statement of Issues that Mr Wilding raised. 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 10 

SJH:   Red line version by 4 pm on 22 July, the red line version is an updated 

version of the provisions because quite often when submissions come 

in, the Council changes its position somewhat, sometimes quite a lot, 

sometimes not very much, but that is a tracked version of the final 

documents which will be available to you online.  15 

 

 I am sorry, what I mentioned, the Statement of Issues are already filed 

with the redline version, that should be updated Mr Conway. 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   While there is no formal mediation, I take it the Council is open to 

talking to individual submitters about their trees and their issues? 

 

MR CONWAY:   Yes, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   And the Trust would also be prepared to be involved in that? 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   That is correct, sir.  

 30 

SJH:   All right, well again, can I suggest to you, particularly the last 

gentleman, for example, who said there is a tree that is creating a 

danger, you engage and have a discussion and I am sure the tree can be 

looked at, okay. 

 35 

  [10.40 am] 

 

 I am sorry, Victoria, I do not see the Council’s evidence here. 

 

 Evidence from the Council, and you can make your own call, 40 

Mr van der Wal, it maybe that you wish to file at the same time or you 

can be later as the case maybe, by 4 pm on 29 July. 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, at present, that is set for 3 August, sir - - - 

 45 

SJH:   Yes I understand that, I am saying that - - - 
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MR VAN DER WAL:   - - - are you wishing to bring that forward? 

 

SJH:   Well, I have changed it around because I had looked at this in detail to 

be honest, and I think we should follow the normal course which is the 5 

Council files its evidence first, you do not need to do so but given that 

you are in a position that by and large, you are agreeing with the 

Council, I am giving you the opportunity if you wish, you do not have 

to, to file at the same time as Council. 

 10 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Sir, I think it would assist my clients better to be able 

to file on 3 August, it may be that it simply respond and 

(INDISTINCT 1.56) what the council has filed. 

 

SJH:   You did not listen, I am changing the dates, all of the dates. 15 

 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   You will have the right of rebuttal evidence. 

 20 

MR VAN DER WAL:   Yes, sir.    

 

SJH:   So you make your own call, but the Council and anybody else so 

advised by 4 pm on 29 July, and I am sorry to submitters, this is a very 

tight timetable but the life of this Panel is coming to an end and we 25 

have got a great deal of pressure to get through things, and I think you 

appreciate that we have gone to some lengths to make sure you have 

the opportunity to be heard here. 

 

 But evidence from late submitters, that is your lay evidence or any 30 

expert evidence you wish to call by 4 pm on 3 August, and any rebuttal 

evidence from the Council or anyone who files, on 29 July, by 

5 August. 

 

 Now there is provision in the Order in Council to cross-examine 35 

witnesses but only can be in terms of the Order in Council by leave, so 

you have to apply to us for leave to cross-examine.  That document, if 

you are so advised, wish to cross-examine needs to be filed by 12 noon 

on 8 August. 

 40 

 The evidence in these Hearings is pre-read by the Panel, so you will be 

asked to give a highlights package.  In all the other Hearings to date, 

that has been limited to 10 minutes subject to parties asking for a 

longer time if they believe that is necessary.   

 45 
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 So again, if you think the 10 minute limit is too restrictive, feel free to 

apply to us for extra time.   

 

 The cross-examination, again, is usually for five minutes, but again, if 

you wish to take longer and you think it is necessary in the 5 

circumstances, you only need to apply and I think in every case, we 

have granted all the extensions of time that parties had made.  

 

 But the important thing to remember is your evidence is read before we 

come into the Hearing, so we want you to speak to the highlights of it, 10 

the most important parts. 

 

 The Hearing itself will be on 10 and 11 August, and we have noted 

there maybe applications and they can come from other parties as well 

as Mr van der Wal’s client for video or audio links if necessary. 15 

 

 Does anybody have any queries, any Counsel, any of the submitters. 

 

 All right, thank you, we look forward to hearing from you all on 

10 and 11 August, thank you.  20 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 10.44 AM ACCORDINGLY 


